
1

From: Carrie Palmer 
Sent: Friday, 5 April 2024 1:31 PM
To: Fox, Penny; Welfare Reporting
Subject: CLEMONS/GOODWIN (dec) 3xHorses ex 73 Shelomith Drive ACTON PARK TAS 7270 - 

Background in confidence (#62757)

Hello Penny/team, 

I understand there has been some more community and media interest in the property involved with the 
Brightside 'rescue horses' in the last month so I thought I would send through the following for background as I 
have carriage of the matter currently.  

I attended the property on the 21MAR24 as part of my investigation, there were some very old remains of bones 
in places but no fresh recent dead stock.  There was approx. 150 + mixed bred sheep which were up and 
feeding, rapidly moving away from me approaching and 1 Angus cow among them. There are some tail enders 
among sheep that are lighter, impossible to BCS with wool on them and not being able to physically palpate. 
There were other cattle (approx. 20) in the distance, I was not sure if they were from this property - they were all 
fair condition wise.  The one cow I saw was very lean, she was sitting when I approached but got up and moved 
on when approached, she was in the area where feeds were located. I questioned if she had come onto too 
much grain too quick with John. 

There were 3 round bales of hay fed out, there was grape/spud large bins out that had clearly had grain fed out 
in them. (which sheep wouldn't be able to reach into but cattle would).  There was a large prefab sheep grain 
lick feeder on the Southern boundary behind houses which sheep would be able to feed from when stocked. 

There was a number of water troughs present that were clean and accessible, there was also access to a dam 
for stock. Edges are a bit pugged up from cattle entering water line.  The land overall is dry and grazed out.   

There was no horses on site. 

I spoke with former owner of the horses shortly after visit, John CLEMONS, he stated that the livestock on the 
property belongs to and is managed by Greg BROWN.  I let them know about the one cow, I had 
observed.  John further stated that there had been some water supply issues on the property, which have since 
been rectified. (confirmed by my visit also).  They had commenced supplementary feeding and were looking for 
alternate agistment/land to use for coming months if needed.  They had a vet out to the property in February. 

There has been a lot of social media hype, local media, hearsay, unofficial and unreported allegations from 
several people surrounding this property and the animals due to the involvement with the late Vanessa 
GOODWIN.  

I have advised anyone who has been wanting to complain to make contact with the report it details or AWBPI 
Branch.   To date we have had no further complaint received by RSPCA Tasmania other than the initial one 
revolving around the horses.   
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No one lives on-site at eh location.  Land is owned by . 

The remaining two horses that are in the care of Emma @ Brightside are recovering well.  One horse was 
euthanaised on the day of rescue due to going down/extremely poor condition.  Vetted that day. (I am awaiting 
finalised vet finding report). 

My investigation is current and ongoing, I will be back in the South next week for some further follow-ups and 
statements in relation to this case.  If any more information or complaints come to light regarding livestock, we 
will forward as per process. 

Kind regards, 

Carrie Palmer 
Senior Inspector - Investigations 
RSPCA Tasmania 

Mt Pleasant Laboratories 
165 Westbury Road 
PROSPECT TAS 7249 

PO BOX 66 
MOWBRAY TAS 7248 

HELPING ANIMALS · ENLIGHTENING PEOPLE · CHANGING LIVES 

The RSPCA is an independent, non-government community-based charity providing animal care and protection services, and relies 
on donations from the public in order to carry out its work
If you would like to make a donation or leave a bequest to the RSPCA, please visit the RSPCA website at www.rspcatas.org.au
This communication may contain information which is confidential, subject to professional privilege or otherwise exempt from 
disclosure.  It is intended for the named recipient only.  Any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or other use of this 
communication or its substance is prohibited
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From: Paul, Jason
Sent: Friday, 12 April 2024 12:50 PM
To: Thomas, James
Subject: FW: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020

From: Scurrah, Adam <Adam.Scurrah@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, April 12, 2024 12:48 PM 
To: Paul, Jason <Jason.Paul@nre.tas.gov.au>; Davey, Ewen <Ewen.Davey@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020 

Last COMtrac report from  (Greg BROWN) was August 2023 

Jason whilst he is there can you please get him to check  and report on situations at both 
addresses. 

From: Paul, Jason <Jason.Paul@nre.tas.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, April 12, 2024 12:43 PM 
To: Davey, Ewen <Ewen.Davey@nre.tas.gov.au>; Scurrah, Adam <Adam.Scurrah@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020 

Hi Ewen, 

No worries, I will get James to drive by, he will leave soon. 

Regards, 

Jason Paul | A/ Principal Biosecurity Officer (South) 
Biosecurity Operations | Biosecurity Tasmania 
Primary Industries and Water Division 
Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania 
13 St Johns Avenue, New Town, Tasmania, 7008 
M:  
E: Jason.Paul@nre.tas.gov.au 
W: www.nre.tas.gov.au 
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From: Davey, Ewen <Ewen.Davey@nre.tas.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, April 12, 2024 12:42 PM 
To: Scurrah, Adam <Adam.Scurrah@nre.tas.gov.au>; Paul, Jason <Jason.Paul@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020 

Hi Jase, 

Do we have a senior officer that can do a drive by to observe the conditions at this property today? Maybe 
James who has AWBPI experience for two factors: 

1. To demonstrate we have visited the locality (Adam – not sure when we were last in this region or
property);

2. To inform LC on Monday of the situation.

Let me know thoughts. 

Regards, 

Ewen Davey | A/Director 
Biosecurity Operations | Biosecurity Tasmania 
Primary Industries and Water 
Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania 
13 St Johns Avenue, New Town, Tasmania, 7008 
M:  
E: ewen.davey@nre.tas.gov.au 
W: www.nre.tas.gov.au 

From: Scurrah, Adam <Adam.Scurrah@nre.tas.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, April 12, 2024 12:28 PM 
To: Miles, Rhian <rhian.miles@nre.tas.gov.au>; Chivers, Liam <liam.chivers@nre.tas.gov.au>; Fox, Penny 
<Penny.Fox@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Cc: Davey, Ewen <Ewen.Davey@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020 

Hi all 

Can we please follow this one up on Monday as a priority as to the circumstances and any other issues. We are 
receiving a lot of outside interest regarding the owner of these sheep a Mr Greg BROWN, but we will need to be on 
front foot to ensure this is covered off effectively. Please keep me in the loop re updates and will chat Monday. 

Thanks 
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Regards 

Adam Scurrah | State Regulation and Enforcement Coordinator 
Biosecurity Operations Branch 
Biosecurity Tasmania 
Department of Natural Resources and Environment Tasmania 
165 Westbury Road Prospect 7249 
Mail: GPO Box 46 Kings Meadows, TAS 7249 
T: (03)  
E: adam.scurrah@nre.tas.gov.au 
W: nre.tas.gov.au 

From: Miles, Rhian <rhian.miles@nre.tas.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, April 12, 2024 11:45 AM 
To: Chivers, Liam <liam.chivers@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Cc: Fox, Penny <Penny.Fox@nre.tas.gov.au>; Scurrah, Adam <Adam.Scurrah@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: Fwd: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020 

For investigation please. Are there any inspectors on in the south today please?  

Kind regards,  

Rhian  
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Fox, Penny <Penny.Fox@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, April 12, 2024 11:41:56 AM 
To: Miles, Rhian <rhian.miles@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020  

From: Call Centre Dispatcher <ccdispatcher@rspcaqld.org.au> 
Sent: Friday, 12 April 2024 11:41:36 am (UTC+10:00) Hobart 
To: a.scurrah@nre.tas.gov.au <a.scurrah@nre.tas.gov.au>; Welfare Reporting <WelfareReporting@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020 

Cruelty Complaint Summary 

Job Num: 
63192

Urgency:Critical IncidentDate Received:12-Apr-2024, 11:26:00 AM (11:26)Officer Details:Officer 
Region:South EastCruelty Complaint Codes 
Poor Condition (see Animal Details) No Treatment

Caller Details 
Name: 
Address: 
Phone: 
Email Address: 
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Person of Interest Details 

Name: 
Gender: 
Physical Description: 
Address 

Location Details 
Location: 
Directions to Property: 
Map Reference: 
Location Notes: 

THERE HAVE BEEN PREVIOUS DISPATC
0 OTHER DISPATCH REQUESTS AT

Cruelty Complaint Details 

Received By: Brayden Dickens
Source: Public - Direct To Communications
Potential Violence: Unknown Verbally Abusive: Unknown 
Potential Violence Details: 
Other Comments / Notes: 
Apr 12 
2024 
11:34AM

Caller is reporting a sheep that has been down for 4 days. She thought it was dead so she ignored it as he often has 
dead sheep scattered around the paddock but noticed this morning it was wiggling its legs. Caller is very distressed by 
this and says he owns other farms that need investigating but was unable to provide details and addresses.

Apr 12 
2024 
11:38AM

Assigned region, called and forwarded to DPI.

Complainant Observed Animals:  No   Commercial Livestock:  No 
Inspection / Followup Notes 

Number of Animals Type Breed Features Condition Aggressive / Dangerous 
1 Sheep Down
150 Sheep Healthy

Imogen 
Call Centre Dispatcher 
RSPCA Contact Centre  

     M    m      m  
R P
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From: Chivers, Liam
Sent: Monday, 15 April 2024 9:23 AM
To: Scurrah, Adam; Miles, Rhian; Fox, Penny
Cc: Davey, Ewen
Subject: RE: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020

Hi Adam, 

I’ve had a few dealings with this property and each time it’s always ended up being OK. Myself and James 
Thomas were only out at this property about November last year and spoke to Greg Brown, we didn’t identify 
any animal welfare concerns at the time of our visit.  The sheep are kept in a large paddock and do have access 
to water. I think the main problem is that they are being kept next to a busy road, visible to the general public.  

I have spoken to James regarding Friday and he confirmed that the “dead sheep” was no where to be seen and 
all other animals appeared in good condition. 

I’ve updated Comtrac, “CR-24-001573” with officers notes from the day. 

Just an FYI, Mr BROWN wants to be a liberal politician, he had signs up all over Howrah and Lauderdale 
recently (but wasn’t successful in gaining a seat). Obviously, this won’t change how we treat him but probably 
just worth knowing.  

I don’t believe there is much more action that needs to be taken at this stage. Every other time I’ve visited I 
have confirmed the sheep are checked and fed regularly by either Greg or someone he has employed to look 
after them.  

Kind Regards 

Liam 

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
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From: Scurrah, Adam
Sent: Monday, 15 April 2024 10:10 AM
To: Chivers, Liam; Miles, Rhian; Fox, Penny
Cc: Davey, Ewen
Subject: RE: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020

Sounds good, thanks! 

From: Chivers, Liam <liam.chivers@nre.tas.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2024 10:00 AM 
To: Scurrah, Adam <Adam.Scurrah@nre.tas.gov.au>; Miles, Rhian <rhian.miles@nre.tas.gov.au>; Fox, Penny 
<Penny.Fox@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Cc: Davey, Ewen <Ewen.Davey@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020 

No worries, 

Just to be ultra safe, I went ahead and gave him a call and left him a message to call me back. I’ll explain the 
situation to him on Friday, double check the sheep are being checked regularly etc and then close it off. 

Kind Regards 

Liam 

From: Scurrah, Adam <Adam.Scurrah@nre.tas.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2024 9:58 AM 
To: Chivers, Liam <liam.chivers@nre.tas.gov.au>; Miles, Rhian <rhian.miles@nre.tas.gov.au>; Fox, Penny 
<Penny.Fox@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Cc: Davey, Ewen <Ewen.Davey@nre.tas.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: C 63192 SANDFORD TAS 7020 

Thanks liam 

I am comfortable that we have covered this off with the site visit from James on Friday 

We will continue to monitor the situation and keep comms open with Mr Brown 

From: Chivers, Liam <liam.chivers@nre.tas.gov.au>  
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2024 9:23 AM 
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
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CR-24-001573 – 12/04/2024 

Principal Investigators – James Thomas 

Incident Location: 849 South Arm Road, Sandford TAS, 7020 

Incident Description: Report of sheep that has been down for 4 days in a 

paddock . Believed to be dead but was noticed to 

be wiggling/moving its legs.  

Running Sheet Entries: 

Correspondence 
Phone 
12/04/2024, 11:51 am 
00h:02m 
Rhian Miles 
On the 12th day of April 2024 at 11:51 am an Urgent Critical Report was received by AWBPI 
admin of a down sheep at POI address . SBI Rhian 
MILES forwarded the email asking if any SBI's were available in the South office to attend 
the property. Shortly afterwards MILES received a phone call from AWBPI co-ordinator 
Adam SCURRAH wishing to discuss the matter, where MILES informed SCURRAH she was in 
the middle of obtaining contact details for the POI to make contact as no SBI could attend. 
MILES and SCURRAH discussed possible BT staff that could attend and euthanise if required. 
MILES advised SCURRAH she would attempt contact and report progress. SBI Rhian MILES 
contacted POI Gregory BROWN on his mobile phone obtaining contact details from theList 
under the PIC layer. The phone was answered by BROWN's . 
Following introduction MILES informed  of the call and discussed the down sheep who 
had been reported to be down for 4 days.  was not aware of any ill sheep and 
questioned as to why the report took 4 days to be logged by the complainant. MILES 
advised of concern for the sheep and questioned if stock were checked daily, asking if any ill 
sheep were identified. Gregory was currently tending to another property in Orford, but 

 would call straight away to advise of the cast sheep. MILES requested  provide an 
update. At 12:00pm that same day,  called MILES advising she had spoken to Gregory, 
and he was attending the property immediately. MILES thanked her for the call, and again 
reiterated the importance of checking stock daily, in which  advised they did, but often 
things go un-seen within the herd. MILES provided these updates to SCURRAH via text 
message, and another phone call. Email thread of initial report and actioning attached in 
'Correspondence and Attachments'. 

Investigation 
12/04/2024, 01:35 pm 
00h:00m 
James Thomas 
For Running Sheet: On 12th April 2024 at 1335, senior officer James THOMAS and senior 
inspector Amy WING drove by the property of 849 South Arm Rd, Sandford. Both officers 
witnessed healthy sheep in paddocks however one animal was laying down. Officers parked 
the car and approached the property. Officers went directly back to the exact site of the 
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animal that was lying down to see if there were any welfare concerns or if the animal was 
deceased. When officers reached the location there was no animal to be found. Only 2-3 
minutes had passed between officers sighting the animal, parking, and making their way 
back to the original site where they first saw the animal. It is believed that the animal was 
alive and resting as all remaining sheep in the paddock looked to be healthy and were 
roaming hundreds of meters away from officers. No welfare concerns were identified, and 
no carcasses were discovered. 

Investigation 
12/04/2024, 04:09 pm 
00h:00m 
James Thomas 
Initial Report and correspondence between officers on course of action. 

Investigation 
15/04/2024, 09:24 am 
00h:00m 
Liam Chivers 
E-mail from Adam SCURRAH with response from Liam CHIVERS

Correspondence 
15/04/2024, 09:30 am 
00h:00m 
Liam Chivers 
On the 15th day of April 2024 at 9:30 am, Senior Biosecurity Inspector Liam CHIVERS called 
POI Greg BROWN. No answer, left a voice mail message to call me back. 

Investigation 
15/04/2024, 10:17 am 
00h:00m 
Liam Chivers 
Correspondence with Adam SCURRAH stating actions taken so far. 

Investigation 
Phone Call 
15/04/2024, 03:40 pm 
00h:00m 
Liam Chivers 
On the 15th day of April 2024 at 3:40 pm, Senior Biosecurity Inspector Liam CHIVERS 
received a call from Greg BROWN (POI) and made him aware of Biosecurity's visit to the 
property on Friday. Mr BROWN was aware officers attended the property as he saw them 
on the day. He was going to stop but was currently testing positive for COVID and did not 
want to infect others. He is aware of the sheep and is treating it. He said it was delivered to 
the property on Wednesday and he thinks it may of hurt itself whilst travelling. He said the 
sheep is able to move but he’s keeping an eye on it. He stated it is getting better but will 
take care of it if its health diminishes. The sheep are checked daily. 
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Outcome/Results 

Spoke to MR BROWN. He is aware of the sheep and is treating it. No further Action required 

at this stage. 
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